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7.1.13 Other Related Palestinian Ministries

* Ministry of Agriculture WWW.Moa.gov.ps
* Ministry of Finance www.mof.gov.ps
* Ministry of Interior WWW.MO1.ZOV.ps
* Ministry of Tourism www.visit-palestine.com

7.2 General Profile of Palestine

7.2.1 Historical Background and Political Framework

The area west of the Jordan River has been known as Palestine since ancient times. The
Ottomans ruled the area from 1517 until the empire’s defeat in the First World War. After the
war, the territory was entrusted to the United Kingdom under a League of Nations mandate.
The British promised the Jews in Europe to help them establish a national home in Palestine
in the Balfour Declaration of 1917. However, the British had made different promises to the
Arabs of Palestine in return for their support during the First World War.



These conflicting promises resulted in tensions and outbreaks of violence between
the Arab population and an increasing number of Jews who moved to Palestine from
Europe. The Palestinians attempted to assert their identity against the dual challenge
of a colonial administration and increasing Jewish immigration. The culmination of
these efforts was the Palestinian general revolt of 1936-39, which gained widespread
popular support.

In 1947, the UN General Assembly passed Resolution 181, known as the Partition Plan, dividing
Palestine into two separate states. The Palestinians rejected the plan as it gave Jews, who owned
6% of the land, a state that controlled 55% of the country. The Jews proclaimed the State
of Isracl on May 15, 1948 and the developments connected to this event are known to the
Palestinians as the ‘Nakba’ (catastrophe).

In the ensuing military conflict of 1948-49, Israel gained control of a larger area than it had
been allocated, totalling 77% of Mandatory Palestine and more than half of the designated
international zone of Jerusalem. The war also forced at least 750,000 Palestinians to leave their
homes. While some of these Palestinians were internally displaced, the majority of them became
refugees, taking refuge in neighbouring Arab countries, especially Jordan, Syria and Lebanon.

In 1964, the Palestinians gained an independent voice by establishing the Palestine Liberation
Organisation (PLO). Following the Arab defeat in the 1967 war and the Israeli occupation
of the West Bank, Gaza Strip and East Jerusalem', the Palestinians adopted a policy of self-
reliance in their resistance against Israeli control of their land. Numerous guerrilla operations
were carried out against Israel by the PLO and other factions.

These raised the influence of the resistance movement among the Palestinians and in the
region, enabling it to press the Arab governments into recognising a separate Palestinian
identity. The PLO’s efforts were formally acknowledged by the Arab League in 1974 when it
recognised the PLO as “the sole legitimate representative of the Palestinian people”.

The outbreak of the Palestinian uprising, ot In#ifada,in 1987 led to a world-wide recognition of
the Palestinians’ plight under the Israeli occupation and their legitimate struggle for freedom
and independence. Consequently, the PLLO declared an independent state in November 1988,
and shifted its strategy from armed struggle to pursuing a negotiated solution.

1 The Gaza Strip had been controlled by Egypt, and the West Bank and East Jerusalem by Jordan, since the 1948-49 war.
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This provided a basis for the US/USSR-sponsored peace initiative in 1991 and paved the way
for mutual recognition by the PLO and Israel in 1993 by the signing of the Declaration of
Principles and the Oslo Accords. In these documents the two sides committed to negotiating
the end of their historical conflict. As specified in the accords, a limited system of Palestinian
self-government was established over parts of the WBGS.

The new arrangement engendered high expectations of improvement for the Palestinian
areas. Self-government was envisaged as setting free the WBGS from the harsh conditions
of the Israeli occupation, and creating a new environment conducive to the expansion of
production and trade. Peace and stability would encourage domestic economic activities,
attract foreign investment, and open the door to regional coordination and integration.
In addition, the international community’s commitment to underwrite part of the cost of
the Palestinian reconstruction programme was seen as supplying much needed capital and
foreign exchange.

Fourteen years of limited self-rule, however, have not lived up to these high expectations.
The continued Israeli confiscation of Palestinian lands and the building of new Jewish
settlements, as well expanding old ones, have created a poisonous atmosphere of strife.
The reversion to the old habits of daily clashes between the Israeli security forces and the
Palestinians protesting Israeli settlements and land policies has suffocated the euphoric mood
that had greeted the signing of the first peace accord. It led to a deterioration of economic
conditions and prevented any serious movement toward reconstruction and development of
the Palestinian economy.

This untenable situation precipitated the eruption of the Al Aqsa Intifada on 28 September 2000.
This second Palestinian uprising was started by Palestinian youths demonstrating against the
provocative visit of the leader of the Likud party Ariel Sharon to the Haram Al-Sharif (the Noble
Sanctuary) in Jerusalem, accompanied by 1,000 Israeli police. Israel reacted by unleashing its
superior military force, equipped with the most advanced technology, inflicting terrible suffering
on the Palestinians in terms of loss of life and destruction of homes and infrastructure.

Palestinian militant organisations reacted to this Israeli brutality by attacking Israeli soldiers and
settlers, and by a wave of suicide bomb attacks on Israeli cities, which resulted in the death of
scores of Israeli civilians. This created a vicious citcle of escalation from one side and counter
escalation from the other side, culminating at the end of March 2002 with the Israeli Army
reinvading most of the West Bank



Despite all these enormous political problems, including the Israeli closure policy, settlement
construction and, recently, the building of a Separation Wall, the PNA and the Palestinian
people have taken several important steps towards nation-building and economic recovery
(see next section). In the midst of ongoing In#ifada and Israeli military closures and incursions,
the PNA has embarked upon an intensified reform and democratisation process, leading the
way in the Arab World towards free elections and good governance.

The reform agenda has included measures to improve the accountability and transparency
of fiscal management as well as a reform of security mechanisms. The Palestinians have also
continued on the road towards democracy by holding both presidential and local municipal
elections during 2005 and parliamentary elections in 2006. Those elections were described by
the foreign observers who monitored them and by the international media as fair, transparent
and democratic.

According to the Palestinian Basic Law which was signed by the President of the PNA in
2002, the structure of the PNA is based on three separate branches of power: executive,
legislative, and judicial. The president of the PNA is directly elected by the Palestinian people.
An amendment to the Basic Law was approved in 2003, stipulating that the president appoint
a prime minister who also heads the national security services. The prime minister chooses a
cabinet of ministers and runs the government, reporting directly to the president.

The Palestinian Legislative Council (PLC) acts as a patliament. It approves all cabinet
positions proposed by the prime minister, and must also confirm the prime minister himself
upon nomination by the president. The amended Election Law of 2005 raised the number
of parliamentary seats from 88 to 132, elected through a mixed electoral system (majority
and proportional representation).

By the end of 2007 more than 100 Palestinian laws related to economic and financial matters,
judicial matters, and social issues, had been passed and signed, while others are awaiting
signature by the President or are still being drafted. Some of these laws are of particular
interest to investors, such as the Investment Promotion Law, the Industrial Zones Law, the
Labour Law and many others.

Since the formation of the Emergency Government following the events of June 2007 in
Gaza, ten laws and amendments have been made by presidential decree, including legislation
on money laundering, insurance, and the 2007 and 2008 budgets, while seven others await
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the President’s signature. However, according to the Palestinian Basic Law, these laws must
be ratified at the first possible meeting of the PLC.

The Judiciary has the power to administer justice by means of its judges and courts. The
Judicial authority is independent and is exercised by the different courts spread across the
Palestinian Territory. Judges are also independent and need not be subject to any authority
other than the authority of law while exercising their duties.

Two laws govern the judiciary in Palestine: the Law of Judicial Organisations No 15 of
2005, and the amended Law of the Formation of Regular Courts No 5 of 2001. Courts in
Palestine are of three types: religious, special and ordinary. Courts include Shari’a Courts,
which adjudicate Muslim personal status matters, and religious courts which adjudicate
matters relating to non-Muslim faiths that are recognised in Palestine.

Special Courts are assigned to look into specific matters, such as the Customs Court,
Juvenile Court, Labour court, Municipality Court and Military Court. Ordinary Courts
are divided mainly into civil and criminal courts. Ordinary courts are hierarchically
divided into Magistrate’s Courts, Courts of First Instance, Courts of Appeal and Courts
of Cassation.

7.2.2 Reconstruction and Economic Development Program

The challenges that faced the PNA after its establishment
in May 1994 were enormous. In addition to the problem
of reconstructing a new political system and government
administrations, it faced the equally urgent task of reviving
the economy.

At that time, the economy suffered from a chronic incapacity
to create enough jobs to employ the labour force, generate
enough saving to finance investment and produce enough
exports to pay for imports. Despite the crippling political |g
situation described above, the PNA managed to implement
various changes that contributed to an improvement in the
economic environment.




7.2.3 Achievements of the PNA (1994-2000)

Despite all the obstacles that were imposed by the political situation, the PNA managed to

accomplish certain improvements in the areas of building new institutions, rehabilitating old

ones, and creating a better environment for economic activities. These include the following:

* The establishment of various ministries concerned with economic issues, which began to
address the restrictive regulatory regime imposed on business activities during the occupation
(see Section 4).

* The removal of some of the impediments to domestic and foreign investment through
new laws and regulations which encourage investment and provide special tax treatment
(see Section 3)

* The establishment of a new regulatory environment for private business, which has
stimulated private investment, especially in communications, tourism and services. Several
major Palestinian holding companies with an international reach have been established and
have begun to operate in various fields, capitalised primarily by Palestinian expatriate and
domestic sources (see Section 4).

*The removal of pre-1994 restrictions on Palestinian and Arab banks and the establishment
of the PMA. Improved financial intermediation as the new stock exchange, which began
trading in late 1996, matures (see Section 3).

* A major expansion of economic activity in the public sector, in which there was a rapid
increase in the number of employees, reflecting the urgent need to provide public services
neglected during the occupation, to ensure public security and to relieve unemployment by
providing public sector jobs. The PNA has launched an impressive and widely recognised
programme to rehabilitate physical infrastructure and social services in the territory under
its jurisdiction (see Section 3).

* A functioning, though not wholly satisfactory, framework for Palestinian external trade relations
has been established, which has allowed a degree of diversification in Palestinian trade flows (see
Section 3).

7.2.4 Palestinian Reform and Development Plan (PRDP)

The PRDP for 2008-2010 was launched at the Paris donor conference on 17 December 2007.
Its objectives are institutional reform and economic and social development, and the plan
emphasizes commitment to civil and security governance reforms, fiscal stability, generating
employment, and improving public services.
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The chief economic elements of the PRDP include public-sector wage bill reduction’,
reducing the cost of net lending, improving revenue performance, and the payment of
arrears owed to the private sector and government employees totalling $500 million. The
plan also sets out 7 major programs to improve the economy, and another 7 which focus on
infrastructure development.

The plan originally requested $5.6 billion for development assistance, but donor pledges
reached $7.7 billion”. The major donors include the European Commission ($1,192m),
Saudi Arabia (§776m), the U.S.A. ($555m) and the UK ($500m). To help in the process
of the plan implementation, the World Bank announced the creation of a new multi-
donor trust fund for donors to channel international direct budgetary support. The

precise disbursement criteria were finalized and funds started flowing at the beginning
of March 2008.

The development projects outlined in the Plan are shown in section 7.3

7.2.5 Urgent Tasks Facing the PNA

It is widely agreed that there are four main challenges facing the Palestinian economy: dealing
with the situation in Gaza, dismantling the legacy of occupation, responding to the popular
demand for democratisation and fighting corruption, and responding to the ongoing process
of globalisation.

7.2.5.1 The Situation in Gaza

The economic, political, and social situation in Gaza has been constantly deteriorating since
the events of June 2007°. Unemployment has jumped sharply, reaching 35% in the fourth
quarter of 2007, primarily due to the fact that 95% of factories in Gaza have closed. Karni
crossing has been closed to all but humanitarian shipments since 12 June, and the energy
supply of Gaza is in the balance after a combination of fuel and funding cuts deprived large
parts of Gaza of electricity.

1 In 2007 the Palestinian wage bill equaled 27% of GDP due to the large number of public workers (189,000), the PNA aims to
reduce that to 22% by cutting the number of public employees to 150,000 by 2010.

2 Until February 2008.

3 In June 2007 Hamas took over the Gaza strip following a series of clashes between the movement’s militants and the PNA
security forces.



The damage caused to the private sector in Gaza by the Israeli blockade will not easily be
reversed. Investors have lost confidence and exporters have lost hard-won market share.
Unlike after shorter previous periods of closure, when sectors such as textiles and furniture
rebounded quite quickly as Israeli companies took advantage of Gaza’s skilled and relatively
low-cost labour force, the prolonged blockade has meant such firms have had to look
elsewhere for other partners to fill their orders. Furthermore, many manufacturers have
relocated to Egypt, Jordan or the West Bank.

If and when agreement is reached to reopen the crossings with Israel, some sectors will
recover more quickly than others. Construction, which has lost at least $370m worth of
projects since June 2007', will be able to start almost as soon as the first truckload of cement
is allowed in. Likewise, although machinery which has sat idle for months will need to be
serviced and repaired, many factories will be able to restart manufacturing soon after the
necessary inputs are allowed in.

The food industry and plastics and packaging firms will likely be among the first to recover.
Companies which manufacture products for the domestic market will be at an advantage,
so chemicals and metalwork firms should also recover. However, the vital furniture and
textiles sectors (which export 76% and 90% of their products to Israel respectively) will need
assistance to re-establish themselves.

Schemes such as PalTrade’s peet-to-peer programme to promote cooperation between Palestinian
and Israeli firms (launched in 2006 but now suspended in Gaza) will play a vital role in restoring
ties, although it will take years to restore exports to anything like the level of 400 truckloads per
day which Karni processed at the end of 20006, or the 750 which it is capable of processing.

In the long term, the private sector in Gaza will have to develop other markets than Israel, and the
obvious place to look is south. Discussions with Egypt in 2005 reached agreement on opening
the Rafah crossing point to commercial traffic, which would give Gazan firms access to the
airport at El-Arish and the sea port at Port Said. The Rafah terminal would need to be upgraded,
and some agreement reached which satisfied the security concerns of the three sides®.

1 See ochaonline.un.org/OchaLinkClick.aspx?link=ocha&docld=1059290

2 Theoretically, the termination of the Customs Union between Israel and Gaza would allow Egypt and the PNA to negotiate an
agreement directly over opening the crossing, but the likelihood that this could be achieved without Israeli approval is small. For
more information, see Oxford Research Group ‘Conflict, Economic, Closure, and Human Security in Gaza, (October 2007) (http://
www.ldf.ps/file/download/home_-_aid_publications/Oxford%20Research%20Group.pdf?version_id=86287)
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Under the Agreement on Movement and Access (2005), the legal underpinnings are already
in place to develop Rafah for exports, while the Arab League Agreement on Transit allows
for duty-free passage of Palestinian goods through Egypt. This option needs to be further
explored and sensitively developed'.

7.2.5.2 Dismantling the Legacy of Occupation

The harsh economic measures imposed by the Israeli occupation on the Palestinian economy
have created an adverse situation of dependence, which has locked in a path of subordination
to and dependency on the Isracli economy. These measures, which were dubbed by the
American economist Sara Roy as ‘De-Development’, include the following:

* Restriction on the use of natural resources by confiscating Palestinian land to build Jewish
settlements. Palestinians in the West Bank were allowed the use of only 15 to 20 per cent
of the annually available water originating in the area.

* Restriction on the economic activities of the productive sectors by placing all economic
activities under the scrutiny of the Israeli military administration. Restriction of trade by
imposing a customs union arrangement, which was in effect an asymmetric trade regime.

* A transfer of resources to Israel that amounted in any given year to 15-25 per cent of
Palestinian GDP. These include value added taxes and custom duties on products imported
from Israel, as well as income and social security taxes collected from Palestinians working
in Israel and its settlements.

* The separation wall built by the Israeli government stands for more than 425 miles isolates
about 240 thousand Palestinians from the rest of West Bank by surrounding villages and
separating farmers from their lands. The International Court of Justice announced in
July 2004 that the wall is illegal and must be removed, ordering the Israeli government
to compensate Palestinians who were affected by its construction. Although Israel has
ignored this judgment, the wall has also been challenged in the Israeli Supreme Court,
which resulted in three resolutions which ordered the Israeli military forces to re-route
parts of the wall.

The cumulative impact of these restrictions on resource use, business activities, and domestic
and international trade has subsequently weakened the traditional productive sectors of
the Palestinian economy. This has caused a general reallocation of factors of production,

1 For more details, see World Bank ‘Potential Alternatives for Palestinian Trade: Developing the Rafah Trade Corridor’ (March
2007). (http://siteresources.worldbank.org/INTWESTBANKGAZA/Resources/RafahCorridorMarch07.pdf



combined with reorientation of trade flows, to the benefit of Israel. As a consequence, a
major structural transformation of the Palestinian economy has taken place. It has become
an economy characterised by two growing disequilibria: a resource gap and labour market
imbalance, and great and unhealthy dependence on external sources of income. It also
features a sectoral disarticulation and an infrastructure gap.

The programme of reconstruction and development has to achieve the following objectives:

* Expanding the productive sectors (agriculture and industry) so as to contribute around
50% of GDP (instead of the present situation of less than 30%) and to create enough
employment opportunities to absorb the labour force and replace the export of labour by
the export of goods and services.

* Integrating the Palestinian economy into regional and world markets and ending its
dependence on one trading partner.

* Adopting a strategy of sustainable growth grounded on a basis of equity, social security
and a continuous narrowing of the income gap between urban and rural areas.

7.2.5.3 Democratisation and Fighting Corruption

Since 2000, the PNA has launched a number of reform agendas. They include the economic
Policy Framework (2000); the 100-Day Plan of the Palestinian Government (June 2002); the
One-Year Reform Action Plan (September 2004-September 2005); the 100-day Work Plan of
the PNA cabinet (March 2005); and the Medium Term Development Plan (2005), and finally
the Palestinian Reform and Development Plan (see section 7.2.4).

The declared aims of these initiatives were to establish a participatory, consensus-oriented,
accountable and transparent policy-making process; improve efficiency and effectiveness at
the implementation level; and ensure responsiveness to the economy’s development interests.
Most observers contend, however, that not much has been done to achieve these objectives.

Alotof work has to be done to reform and renew public institutions. Some of these institutions
currently have an ineffective bureaucracy that imposes barriers to entry, high operating costs,
and increased risk and uncertainty for firms. There is public demand for training a well-
qualified bureaucracy capable of serving the public interest and lowering transaction costs
and reducing uncertainty for firms, especially small and medium-sized enterprises. Having
said that, it would be misleading to belittle the achievements accomplished already. These
include the following:
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* In a little more than a year, the Palestinians were successfully able to hold presidential,
municipal, and legislative elections. The three were monitored by foreign observers who
described them as democratic, fair and transparent.

* Despite unfavourable political conditions, and the attention paid to the three elections, the
PNA has displayed a strong commitment to proceed in implementing reform measures.
In fact, reform has become a nation-wide dialogue involving the participation of various
representatives of the private sector, academia, NGOs, labour unions and the media.

* Reforming the judiciary and nurturing the rule of law is perceived by all participants to be
the most important component of the reform program. It is the cornerstone of a strong,
secure and democratic state. In March 2005, the PNA announced the creation of a Judicial
Steering Committee in charge of dealing with the inherent structural weakness in the
judicial system. The committee has gone a long way in drafting and redrafting the judicial
authority law. In addition, the committee has identified various bylaws pertaining to hiring,
evaluating and promoting judges and members of general prosecution. It also introduced
various measures designed to deal with backlogs and delays in court cases, and to clarify
the role and working mechanism between the police and public prosecution.

In terms of reforming the economy, the PNA has taken various initiatives aimed at improving
the efficiency of the market, and fighting corruption in both the public and the private sectors.
In the former area, a National Competitiveness Council was established by the Ministry of
National Economy MONE to ensure that the practices of economic firms confirm with
standards set by the ministry. Furthermore, the MONE, in collaboration with the private
sector, was successful in preparing and sending to the PL.C a Consumer Protection Law, an
Industry Law, a Movable Assets Law, an Export Promotion Law, a Chambers of Commerce
Law, an Intellectual Property Law, a Commercial Agency Law, a Companies Law and an
Industrial Federation Law.

In the latter area, the PNA has adopted an anti-corruption campaign as a main priority
of the reform program. In this regard, the MOF has introduced a single treasury account
that consolidated all public revenue and expenditures The MOF has also eliminated all
payments to security personnel except through bank accounts. It is widely believed that the
two measures have resulted in considerable savings.

The campaign against corruption achieved a major accomplishment in 6 January 2005 when
the PLC passed the Law on Illicit Wealth. Subsequently, the Cabinet referred to the Attorney
General several corruption cases involving some senior civil servants. Similarly, the MONE



has made two important changes in areas that were dogged by rumours of shady business
practices. The first was reassessing and restructuring the Palestine Investment Fund with
the aim of ensuring transparency, accountability, and sound investment practices in all its
activities The second was creating a special privatisation programme to end the undesired
role of the PNA in companies importing cement and petrol’.

7.2.5.4 Responding to the Ongoing Process of Globalisation

Since the mid 1980s, Israel has followed a policy of liberalisation of trade and increased
capital mobility so as to integrate its economy with world markets. This has benefited the
Israeli economy but has had an adverse impact on the Palestinian economy. Cheap Asian
products have flooded the Palestinian market, forcing many Palestinian firms to stop their
manufacturing activities and become vendors of imported goods.

This has taken place because the Palestinian economy was not prepared for the ongoing process
of globalisation. It has to devise some suitable response policies to deal with further dislocations
that are bound to happen as external pressures for homogenisation of trade regimes increase,
and as cross-border flows of capital pose the continuous threat of a currency crisis.

7.2.6 Three-Pronged Strategy of Reconstruction and Development

The upshot of all of this is that Palestinians are facing tough economic challenges and
demanding radical changes in the role of the PNA so as to achieve three goals. First, they want
more economic opportunities and the jobs they create. Second, they want the freedom to be
able to participate in political life so as to choose leaders and policies. Third, they want new
sets of policy responses to the dislocations caused by globalisation. To meet these challenges,
a strategy based on three pillars has evolved after long and intensive deliberations involving
the PNA, the private sector and the civil society. The following is a description of each.

7.2.6.1 Improving the Investment Climate

A change in the role of the PNA is required so as to reduce the perceived risk and increase
the return associated with investment. This change involves four factors. The first is to ensure
stable macroeconomic conditions. Sound monetary and exchange rate policies that result in

1 For a detailed account of the reform see Progress Report on Palestinian Reform (December 2005), issued by the Reform
Coordination & Technical Support Unit in the Prime Minister>s Office.
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low inflation and unemployment rates reduce uncertainty and risk and create a hospitable
environment for investment. Openness to trade attracts foreign direct investment (FDI),
which promotes competition and innovation.

The second essential component of the investment climate is the quantity and quality of the
physical and financial infrastructure. Improving the investment climate fundamentally depends
on improving the quantity as well the quality of physical infrastructure, especially that related
to transportation, electricity, water and telecommunication. Studies have demonstrated that the
impact of investment in infrastructure on economic growth represents startling high rate of return
(up to 60%)'. The PRDP allocates over $400 million for vatious infrastructure projects including
road improvement, electricity sector investment and water & wastewater management.

The third important factor affecting the investment environment is the state of technology
and the ability to conduct research and development activities (R&D). In this regard two
facts have to be considered. The first is that in the long run technological progress is the
major source of improving investment efficiency and economic growth. The second is that
technological progress is advanced by R&D activities, which has the characteristic of public
good. These two facts necessitate a leading role for the PNA in promoting R&D activities.
This includes financing universities to conduct scientific research, and subsidising the private
sector to carry out R&D activities.

The fourth factor affecting the investment climate is the quality of public institutions. State
institutions that have a corrupt bureaucracy impose barriers to entry, high operating costs, and
increase risk and uncertainty for firms. On the other hand, a well-trained rational bureaucracy
characterised by embedded autonomy is effective in facilitating entry, lowering transaction costs
and reducing uncertainty for firms, especially SMEs.

7.2.6.2 Empowerment and Inclusion

Improving the investment climate would spur growth. But growth patterns vary, and growth
episodes that occur with large inequality and which exclude many people cannot be sustained.
Concentrating the fruits of growth in the hands of elite can create adverse incentives and
discourage investment in physical capital, human capital and technology, leading to stagnation
in the future.

1 See World Development Report, World Bank (1994, p.15)



Various empirical studies have demonstrated that the exclusion of sizable portion of the
population results in poor distribution of income and is bad for economic growth. The
findings of these studies have demonstrated that in countries where income inequality is
higher, the accumulation of human capital through education is lower, which is bad for
growth. Other studies have demonstrated that there is a significant tendency for countries
with less equal income distribution to have a higher degree of political instability.

Sustained growth, therefore, requires the effective participation of the majority of the citizens
through the process known as empowerment. Empowerment is a dynamic process directed by
the state aimed at enabling the majority of people to participate effectively in society and the
economy. In particular, the process is directed to empower the poor to improve their health
and education so as to enable them to acquire assets, information, and legal standing to achieve
two tasks: first, to become part of the socio-political structure of the country, capable of
shaping their lives and expanding the scope of their economic activities; second, to acquire the
power to challenge corrupt officials, bureaucratic hurdles and unsound economic policies.

People in the WBGS feel, along with most people in the Arab World, that they suffer from
a ‘freedom deficit’ and they demand a complete political reform which establishes a political
system that guarantees civil liberties to all citizens in their daily lives and in acts of political, social
and economic participation. Reform should also ensure the existence of checks and balances
and institutions that can constrain the power of the executive branch of the government. The
PRDP allocated $392 million for enhancing good governance and creating programs such as
the “Open and Accountable Government” and “Efficient and Effective Government”.

It should be emphasised that these principles of democracy cannot become a reality in the lives

of the citizens of the West Bank and Gaza by merely running elections monitored by foreign
observers. Above all, democracy requires effective participation of the citizen, which depends
on their capabilities, and most importantly on their income, education, and security. Accordingly,
the strategy of empowerment should be based on the allocation of public expenditure that
gives top priority to education, health and social security for the poor. In short, the programme
of reconstruction and development should be a pro-poor growth program.

The PRDP sets out several programs for the social sector, allocating a total of $506 million
over three years to projects including social protection reform, education and health care, and
women’s and youth empowerment programs. Such projects aim to enhance the quality of life,
providing social protection, and restoring economic growth by developing human capital.
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7.2.6.3 Regional Coordination

An important aspect of the Palestinian reconstruction and development programme
is the need to diversify Palestinian economic relations with other countries so as to
reduce its dependence on one major economy. In this regard, and especially as regards
the movement of goods and people, Jordan is a gateway for the Palestinian economy
to the Arab Mashreq and the Gulf States, and Egypt is a gateway to Arab Maghreb
and Europe.

The reintegration of the Palestinian economy into the economies of the neighbouring
Arab countries is a logical move as it complements and cultivates strong and persisting
bonds of history, culture and religion, resting on a common language and shared
values. It should be emphasised here that such integration would be inspired by the
new concept of regional economic integration and not the old one. The old concept
that was popular in the 1960s and 1970s, especially in the Middle East, Latin America
and Africa, was considered as a move away from integrating the participating countries’
economies into world markets. Most of these arrangements were based on the premise
that member countries could achieve industrialisation and growth by creating a wall of
protection around their combined markets and allowing a strict import-substitution
approach to development.

The arrangements were, in effect, the application of an inward-looking approach to
development on a scale larger than the national state. They were bound to fail, as they
did, once the limitations of that strategy became self-evident. In contrast, the new
view of regionalism that has emerged since the mid 1980s is considered as one option
available to developing countries intent on integrating their economies at the global
level, while still providing them with means for dealing with the adverse effects of
globalisation.

Regional integration is sought in order to ensure a larger market supportive of more efficient
production units, which in turn allows the region to pursue a viable export-promotion
strategy of development, and, where needed, import-substituting industrial activities are
carried out at minimum cost. Thus, Palestinian interests are served by cooperating with
neighbouring countries in building regional infrastructure, rationalising production and trade,
and harmonising economic reform measures.



7.3 Development Projects listed in Palestinian Reform and Development Plan

2008 2009 2010 Total

Program Title Primary linkages to PNPA (Sm)  ($m) (Sm)  ($m)
Grand Total 427 550 667 1,644
Governance Sector 108 137 147 392

Goals: Safety & security, good governance
Security Sector Reform & Objectives: Increase professionalism of

Transformation (SSRT) the security services, strengthen criminal 3> 76 7 228
justice system, fiscal stability
Goals: Safety & security, good governance
Justice Now (JN) Objectives: Strengthen criminal justice 12 10 4 26
system
Goals: Good governance
Open and Accountable Objectives: Strengthen public institutions, 17 20 5 42
Government (OAG) enhance efficiency & effectiveness of
government
Goals: Good governance
Efficient and Effective Objectives: Enhance efficiency & 13 18 28 59
Government (EEG) effectiveness of government, slimmer PNA,
fiscal stability
Goals: Good governance
Accountable Local Objectives: Strengthen local government, 1 13 13 37
Government (ALG) enhance efficiency & effectiveness of
government, move towards fiscal stability
Social Sector 141 164 201 506
Social Protection Reform
and Integration (SPRI) Note:
Includes development . - ;
e o e Goals: Enhanced quality of life 4 4 2 10

- . Objectives: Provide social protection
assistance element is

included in budget
support.

Goals: Increased national prosperity,
enhanced quality of life

Objectives: Develop social capital, develop
human capital, restore economic growth 117

Access To Education (ATE) 30 40 65 135
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Program Title

Quality Education For All
(QEFA)

Education Performance &
Efficiency (EPE)

Vocational Training
Initiative (VTI)

Health Quality
Improvement (HQI)

Health Care Affordability
(HCA)

Women’s Empowerment
(WE)

Youth Empowerment (YE)

Employment Generation
Initiative (EGI)

Economy Sector

2008 2009

Pri link: to PNPA

rimary linkages to $m)  ($m)
Goals: Increased national prosperity,
enhanced quality of life 40 45
Objectives: Develop social capital, develop
human capital, restore economic growth
Goals: Increased national prosperity,
enhanced quality of life 5
Objectives: Develop human capital, restore
economic growth, fiscal stability
Goals: Increased national prosperity,
enhanced quality of life 7

Objectives: Develop human capital, restore
economic growth

Goals: Enhanced quality of life
Objectives: Develop human capital, develop 25 30
social capital, provide social protection

Goals: Increased national prosperity,
enhanced quality of life

Objectives: Develop human capital, fiscal
stability

Goals: Increased national prosperity,

enhanced quality of life

Objectives: Develop human capital, restore 7 6
economic growth, develop social capital,

reinforce social coherence

Goals: Increased national prosperity,

enhanced quality of life

Objectives: Develop human capital, restore 4 4
economic growth, develop social capital,

reinforce social coherence

Goals: Increased national prosperity,

enhanced quality of life

Objectives: Develop human capital, restore 17 17
economic growth, develop social capital,

reinforce social coherence

93 109

2010 Total

($m)

45

13

45

16

141

($m)

130

25

100

20

20

11

50

343



2008 2009 2010 Total

Program Title (Sm) (Sm) (Sm) (Sm)

Primary linkages to PNPA

Goals: Increased national prosperity, good

Institutional Reform for
Enterprise (IRE)

Trade Infrastructure &
Facilitation (TIF)

Enterprise Investment and

Development (EID)

Agribusiness Development

(AD)

Industrial Capacity
Development (ICD)

Tourism Industry
Development (TID)

Affordable Housing (AH)

Infrastructure Sector

governance
Objectives: Restore economic growth,
enable private sector development

Goals: Increased national prosperity
Objectives: Restore economic growth,
develop physical capital, enable private
sector development

Goals: Increased national prosperity
Objectives: Restore economic growth,
develop physical capital, enable private
sector development, develop human
capital

Goals: Increased national prosperity,
enhanced quality of life

Objectives: Restore economic growth,
develop physical capital, enable private
sector development

Goals: Increased national prosperity
Objectives: Restore economic growth,
develop physical capital, enable private
sector development

Goals: Increased national prosperity
Objectives: Restore economic growth,
develop physical capital, enable private
sector development

Goals: Increased national prosperity,
enhanced quality of life

Objectives: Restore economic growth,
develop physical capital, develop social
capital

16

12

12

20

85

15

19

17

10

30

140

13

19

31

10

50

178

27

27

43

54

60

32

100

403
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2008 2009 2010 Total

Program Title Primary linkages to PNPA $m)  ($Sm) ($m)  ($m)

Goals: Increased national prosperity,
enhanced quality of life
Road Improvement (RI) Objectives: Restore economic growth, 28 35 52 115
enable private sector development,
develop physical capital

Goals: Increased national prosperity,
enhanced quality of life, good governance
Objectives: Restore economic growth,
develop social capital

Road Safety (RS)

Goals: Increased national prosperity,
enhanced quality of life
Air & Sea (AS) Objectives: Restore economic growth, 3 11 16 30
enable private sector development,
develop physical capital

Goals: Increased national prosperity,

enhanced quality of life

Objectives: Restore economic growth, 16 21 22 59
develop physical capital, enable private

sector development, fiscal stability

Electricity Sector
Investment (ESI)

Goals: Increased national prosperity,

enhanced quality of life

Objectives: Restore economic growth, 27 48 47 122
develop physical capital, enable private

sector development

Water & Wastewater
Management (WWM)

Goals: Enhanced quality of life
Solid Waste Management  Objectives: Restore economic growth,

(SWM) develop physical capital, enable private 4 12 16 =2
sector development, develop social capital
Goals: Enhanced quality of life
Public Recreation and Objectives: Develop physical capital, 3 7 15 25
Culture (PRC) develop social capital, reinforce social

coherence, preserve heritage and culture
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7.4 Tables
Table (Al): Population (aged 15+) by Labour Force Status and Region, (ILO Standards)

Region 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007

West Bank

Labour Force Participation Rate 41.8 42,5 429 441 441
Full Employment Rate 68.7 68.8 71.2 72.0 72.8
Underemployment Rate 7.5 83 8.5 924 9.5
Unemployment Rate 23.8 229 20.3 18.6 17.7
Employed in Agriculture 14.9 16.9 15.7 17.8 16.6
Employed in Construction 14.3 13.0 14.4 12.9 13.6
Employed in Manufacturing 14.0 14.0 14.8 14.6 14.9
Employed in Services 29.4 29.5 28.5 29.0 29.8
Elementary Occupation Workers 13.3 14.8 16.0 15.6 15.8
Craft and Related Trade Workers 19.9 18.0 18.9 18.1 17.8
Employed in Israel & Settlements 12.5 11.6 13.8 13.0 13.1
Employers 4.1 5.0 5.0 4.4 4.4
Self - Employed 29.3 28.1 27.6 27.0 25.4
Wage Employees 553 55.1 56.4 55.7 57.9
Unpaid Family Members 11.3 11.8 11.0 12.6 123
Average Monthly Work Days * 23.7 24.0 23.6 23.1 22.2
Average Weekly Work Hours * 423 43.0 42.5 42.2 4.7
Median Daily Net Wage (NIS) * 60.0 61.5 65.4 69.2 70.0 ,I 21




Gaza Strip

Labour Force Participation Rate 37.5 36.4 36.7 36.1 38.0
Full Employment Rate 67.2 62.5 67.4 60.6 65.6
Underemployment Rate 3.6 2.1 23 4.6 4.7
Unemployment Rate 29.2 354 30.3 34.8 29.7
Employed in Agriculture 17.5 13.4 11.7 11.1 13.1
Employed in Construction 10.4 8.2 9.3 6.0 4.3
Employed in Manufacturing 9.2 9.1 83 6.3 6.6
Employed in Services 40.8 49.1 49.4 53.7 50.9
Elementary Occupation Workers 15.8 13.0 14.4 13.2 10
Craft and Related Trade Workers 15.9 14.7 14.0 10.5 11.7
Employed in Israel & Settlements 3.1 1.1 0.4 - -
Employers 2.2 1.9 2.6 4.2 3.2
Self - Employed 245 222 224 19.4 21.2
Wage Employees 61.7 66.5 67.1 69.6 64.4
Unpaid Family Members 11.6 9.4 7.9 6.8 11.2
Average Monthly Work Days * 22.6 23.2 24.0 24.0 233
Average Weekly Work Hours * 40.6 41.6 41.2 39.9 39.9
Median Daily Net Wage (NIS) * 50.0 52.5 57.7 65.4 57.7

PCBS, Palestinian Statistical Socioeconomic Monograph, 2008
122 * Workers in Israel and settlements are excluded




Table (A2): Basic and Secondary Education Indicators, 2002/2003-2007 /2008

Indicator 2002/2003 | 2003/2004 | 2004/2005 | 2005/2006 | 2006/2007 | 2007/2008*
Schools

Government 1,493 1,580 1,661 1,726 1,775 1,832
UNRWA 269 272 273 279 286 303
Private 244 257 258 272 276 280
Total 2,006 2,109 2,192 2,277 2,337 2,415
Students

Males 495,162 512,490 526,038 535,028 543,265 552,932
Females 488,946 504,953 517,897 532,461 542,009 551,276
Both Sexes 984,108 1,017,44 1,043,935 1,067,489 1,085,274 1,104,208
Teachers

Males 16,719 17,179 17,810 19,520 19,080 20,849
Females 18,566 20,047 20,994 22,865 23,215 24,673
Both Sexes 35,285 37,226 38,804 42,385 42,295 45,522
Classes

Males 10,888 11,554 12,097 12,604 12,961 13,599
Females 10,811 11,560 12,137 12,724 13,199 13,509
Co-Education 5,581 5,556 5,581 5,691 5,803 6,117
Total 27,280 28,670 29,815 31,019 31,963 33,225

PCBS, Palestinian Statistical Socioeconomic Monograph, 2008

The data do not include the Israeli Municipality and Culture Committee Schools in Jerusalem
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Table (A3): Higher Education Indicators 2002/2003 — 2006 /2007

Indicator 2002/2003 |2003/2004 (2004/2005 |2005/2006 (2006/2007
University Students*

Males 49,950 57,168 61,479 64,453 72,034
Females 48,489 56,249 67,658 74,123 86,098
Both Sexes 98,439 113,417 129,137 138,576 158,132
University Graduates*

Males 4,950 6,439 7,129 7,321

Females 5,872 8,407 9,108 10,046

Both Sexes 10,822 14,846 16,237 17,367 o
Teaching Staff at Universities**

Males 1,940 1,862 2,021 3,921 2,614
Females 328 352 386 689 533
Both Sexes 2,268 2,214 2,407 4,610 3,147
Community College Students

Males 2,938 4,423 5,070 6,294 6,319
Females 2,954 4,088 3,932 4,753 4,922
Both Sexes 5,892 8,511 9,002 11,047 11,241
Community College Graduates

Males 598 781 831 1,482

Females 905 946 967 1,342

Both Sexes 1,503 1,727 1,698 2,824 .
Teaching Staff at Community

Males 219 170 512 505
Females 137 58 155 158
Both Sexes 332 356 228 667 663

PCBS, Palestinian Statistical Socioeconomic Monograph, 2008

* University data include students and graduates of intermediate diploma, bachelor and graduate studies in universities and

university colleges.
** Full time only.




Table (A4): Foreign Trade and Balance of Payments

2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006
Current Account ($ mill) | -949.70 | -571.80 | -735.20 | -903.20 | -1.281.70 | -1.064.23 | -993.00
As % of GDP 21.38 15.26 13.80 24.92 31.44 23.77 22.60
Export of Goods and 73130 | 506.80 | 418.40 | 435.80 | 482.10 | 497.00 | 482.10
Service ($ mill)
As % of GSP 16.46 13.53 13.26 12.03 11.83 11.10 10.97
Importof Goodsand | , oo o | 533850 | 2,128.80 | 2,404.90 | 2,749.40 | 2,954.80 | 2,925.30
Service ($ mill)
As % of GDP 67.22 62.43 67.45 66.36 67.44 65.98 66.57
:'s'"::'l‘l)e from Abroad 669.20 | 326.10 | 224.10 | 253.80 | 230.40 | 356.00 | 300.00
As % of GDP 15.07 8.71 7.11 7.00 5.65 7.95 6.85
Of Which:
Compensation of 620.00 | 20020 | 141.10 | 204.00 | 20430 | 26830 | 235.00
Employees ($ mill)
As % of GDP 13.96 534 4.47 6.63 5.01 5.99 535
;‘;:I';e“t Transfers (3 63560 | 933.90 | 1.051.60 | 79330 | 756.10 | 1.037.60 | 1.150.00
As % of GDP 1431 24.93 33.32 21.89 18.55 23.17 26.17
Capital and Financial 1,086.00 | 720.00 | 413.90 | 1,130.10 | 1,319.50 | 986.43 | 1,017.00
Account ($ mill)
As % of GDP 24.45 19.22 13.11 31.18 32.36 22.03 23.15

Source: PMA, Annual Report, 2006

125




Bibliography

Ministry of Education and Higher Education, General Education Statistics 2007-2008
, General Education Statistics 2005-20006.
, Higher Education Statistics 2006-2007.
Ministry of Finance, 2004, unpublished data.
Ministry of National Economy, (http://www.mne.gov.ps).
Oxford Research Group, 2007, ‘Conflict, Economic, Closure, and Human Security in Gaza’.
PASSIA (The Palestinian Academic Society for the Study of International Affairs), Yearbook 2008.
, Yearbook 2006.
PCBS (Palestinian Central Bureau Statistics), 2008, Population Census 2007.
, 2008, Hotel Survey, fourth quarter 2007.
, 2007, Statistical Report about Israeli Settlements.
, 2007, Statistical Abstract of Palestinian, No. 8.
, 2007 Labour Force Annual Report 2006.
, 2007, Main indicators of Transportation and Communication in the Palestinian Territory 2000.
, 2007, Financial and Insurance Surveys 2000.
, 2006, Household Energy Indicators July 2006.
, 2006, Education Indicators, (http://www.pcbs.gov.ps).
, 2006, Land Use Statistics, (http://www.pcbs.gov.ps).
, 20006, Transportation and Communication statistics (http://www.pcbs.gov.ps)
, 2005, Establishment Census 2004.
, Palestinian foreign trade statistics 1999-2006, published and unpublished data.

, Palestinian Foreign Trade Statistics, various issues.

, foreign trade statistics, various issues.
PLO Negotiations Affairs Department website, (http://www.nad-plo.org).
PMA (Palestinian Monetary Authority), 2007, Statistical Bulletin Issue 107.
, 2007, unpublished statistics.
, Twelfth Annual Report, 2006
, The Palestinian Banking System, (http://www.pma.gov.ps).

Palestine Securities Exchange, trading activity statistics 1999-2005, (http://www.p-s-e.com).
(http:/ /wwwldf.ps/file/download/home_-_aid_publications/Oxford%20Research%20Group.pdf?version_id=86287)
UNCTAD (United Nations Conference on Trade and Development), 2005, Report on UNCTAD’s Assistance to the
Palestinian People.
UNDP (United Nations Development Programme), 2008, Human Development Report 2007.
Wortld Bank, 2005, West Bank and Gaza Update.
, 2004, West Bank and Gazga Update.
, 2002, Long-Term Policy Options for the Palestinian Economy.
, 1994, World Development Report.
1 26 , 1993, developing the occupied territories: an investment in peace.




127



For further information on investment in Palestinian Investment Promotion Agency (PIPA)
Tel: 02 298 8712/4

fax: 02 298 9732

E-mail: info@pipa.gov.ps

WWW.pipa.gov.ps

Ein Misbah, PO Box 1984, Ramallah

Gaza:

Tel: 08 284 6007

Fax: 08 284 6008

PO Box 4023, Gaza
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